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Cassidy Welch

From: Cassidy Welch
Sent: Wednesday, July 20, 2022 12:33 PM
To: Cassidy Welch
Subject: FW: P&Z Cases related to AT Still University

 

From: Joel Sannes <jes@udallshumway.com>  
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2022 3:56 PM 
To: Nana Appiah <nana.appiah@mesaaz.gov> 
Subject: RE: P&Z Cases related to AT Still University 
 
Mr. Appiah, 
 
My client, AT Still University, opposes Hines’ request to the City to re‐zone the property near Baseline and Recker roads, 
zoning case ZON22‐00263, from current zoning as PEP/CUP to LI‐PAD and PEP‐PAD.  
 
My understanding is that AT Still first became aware of the proposed zoning change in May of 2022 when it received 
notice of a neighborhood meeting that it attended on May 12th.  AT Still’s opposition to the rezoning is based on the 
neighborhood meeting, but especially the materials provided in advance of the July 12 Design Review Board (“DRB”) 
hearing. 
 
The submittal to DRB included the site plan for the proposed development. There are eight planned buildings.  Three of 
the buildings have 43 truck docking stalls each, four have 19, and one has 15, for a total of 220 truck docking stalls. Each 
building has two planned “drive‐in” truck docks, for a total of 16.  Each building has ostensible “office space,” but the 
office space is limited to 10% of under‐roof coverage for each building.  
 
We would question whether the proposed design would satisfy the criteria for the requested, revised zoning to LI and 
PEP. The project is divided into two parts for the rezoning request, with the three buildings proposed on the north 
portion of the property being light industrial and the five buildings to the south portion being PEP. Except for the sizes of 
the buildings, the development calls for the same use on both halves of the development. The southern portion does 
not meet the criteria for PEP, which is “[t]o provide areas where professional and medical office parks, research and 
development facilities, light manufacturing, and data and information processing centers are integrated in a campus 
setting with ancillary restaurants, retail and other supportive establishments.” Code, 11‐7‐1(B)(1). Light Industrial is for 
“limited manufacturing and processing, wholesaling, research, warehousing, and distribution activities.” Code, 11‐7‐
1(B)(2).  Here, the proposed development appears to be a large‐volume distribution facility, not “limited . . . 
distribution.” 
 
Regardless of whether the development would satisfy the requirements for the proposed zoning change, AT Still 
opposes the rezoning. The area of the proposed development is in a Specialty District for Educational and Medical 
Campuses, as those terms are defined in the Mesa 2040 General Plan. The City Council and Mesa voters approved the 
General Plan in 2014. The General Plan specifically references AT Still University as a pioneering higher education 
provider that located a campus in Mesa. Attracting and supporting higher education institutions was part the City’s 2010 
“strategic vision.”  Specialty Districts are designed for “large, single uses” according to the General Plan. Development in 
Specialty Districts should “maintain a campus feel and connection between buildings.”   Zoning decisions in Specialty 
Districts should “maintain and enhance the nature of the particular special district.” The property that is the subject of 
Hines’ proposed rezoning is owned by “VHS Acquisitions,” which is a subsidiary of Abrazo Health, which presumably also 
purchased property in the area for the purposes of development consistent with the Specialty District zoning.  
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The proposed development is inconsistent with the Specialty District designation in the General Plan.  The proposed use 
is neither educational nor medical.  The proposed design is not consistent with the design of the area immediate to the 
east, which includes the AT Still campus and the YMCA. The AT Still campus, including the YMCA, which leases the land 
from AT Still, have buildings set apart by open space and greenspace. The proposed development has no space between 
buildings except to accommodate the driveways to access the truck docks. The parking areas are campus‐style parking in 
the existing use, but the proposed development will have parking immediately in front of the buildings. Although there 
are nearby uses that are not consistent with the Educational and Medical Specialty District, it appears that most, or all, 
of the developments were built before the General Plan was adopted in 2014.  For example, the UPS distribution center 
to the west appears to have been approved in 2003.  
 
This development would be a trucking and logistics center in the middle of an educational campus, near medical 
campuses. The development directs truck traffic on local roads that pass through high occupancy residential and other 
residential areas before getting to Higley or Baseline Roads.  The two roads leading to Baseline or Higley, Sunview and 
Inverness are two‐lane roads.  The proposed development would extend Sunview from its cul‐de‐sac termination point 
on the west boundary of the AT Still campus in front of the YMCA, for truck traffic to pass directly adjacent to the AT Still 
campus to connect to Baseline. Trucks passing westward through to Higley along Inverness would pass by the San 
Angelin and Inverness Commons apartments, high‐density residential areas.  
 
AT Still made a significant commitment when it located its campus in the area.  The City made a commitment in its 
General Plan to preserve this area long‐term for educational and medical campuses. Because the proposed development 
is inconsistent with the General Plan, and for the other reasons stated, AT Still urges the Planning and Zoning 
department to recommend denial of the rezoning application.  

Joel Sannes 
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We’ve been nominated as a top Arizona law firm for 2022. Please visit azbigmedia.com to cast your vote! 

The information contained in this e‐mail message is attorney privileged and confidential information, intended only for the use of 
the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
dissemination, distribution, or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, 
please notify us immediately by telephone 480‐461‐5300 or reply by e‐mail and delete or discard the message. Although this e‐mail 
and any attachments are believed to be free of any virus or other defect that might affect any computer system into which it is 
received and opened, it is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure that it is virus free and no responsibility is accepted by Udall 
Shumway PLC for any loss or damage arising in any way from its use. Thank you. 
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